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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: /

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the Department of
Commerce and relating to the North Dakota Development Fund, centers of
excellence program, the Office of Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency, and
centers of workforce excellence grants.

Minutes: Attachment #s 1-20

. Chairman Skarphol: The hearing was opened by stating that all members are present
and the hearing will begin on HB 1018, the Commerce Department budget. All committee
members are present.

Paul Govig, Interim Commissioner, Representing the North Dakota Department of
Commerce: The testimony began with a request for a motion to open the hearing.

Rep. Monson: Placed the motion before the Committee. See attachment # 1 Move a DO
PASS.

Rep. Martinson: Second

A roll call vote was taken: Yes, 6, No, 0, Absent0.
Motion passed

Govig: Continuing with testimony, See attachment X, Spreadsheet p.5.
Points out biennium comparisons, plus variances in the columns.

Chairman Skarphol: Why don’t you show that as a $7M variance?

Govig: He stated that he would get into that later. Of interest to you is what is being

0 proposed (10:09)

Chairman Skarphol: So you have one hundred in this biennium?

Govig: Yes, and this would be an additional one hundred.
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Chairman Skarphol: We have some of that but this is an increase.
Govig: Continues with testimony

Rep. Monson: You have grants for child care and loans for child care. What are the loans
for?

Govig: They are to increase their capabilities, and the financial soundness of the day care.
It is used primarily for equipment, special needs capacity, business plans.

Rep. Monson: This could be used for bricks and mortar, fences, etc.

Govig: It can be used for what is necessary. We have separated that. The Grants are not
a part of the development fund.

Rep. Hawken: | will talk with you about the child care issue. | am talking about the
$150,000 and | want to visit with you and Ms Zander and | want to add a considerable
amount of money, they are not using the ioans. Refers to HB 1418 Training child care
workers. | am thrilled that it is part of commerce now.

Govig: We always welcome input

Chairman Skarphol: $150,000 is that an appropriation? Addressing Sara Chamberlin,
Legislative Council Analyst, | am asking you to finance all of the childcare money in the
various budgets. In essence, for centers of Excellence there is $18M.

Govig: In essence you are right.
Chairman Skarphol: Additional FTEs?

Govig: Two for the energy division and one-quarter for the tourism division to provide full
time status to a three-quarter time employee. It also includes carry-over authority. In
addition, the creation of the internship fund for the operation of an internship program. The
biofuels blender pump fund program and finally the $5M carryover to the next biennium
because these funds were not expended. We have an amendment that would correct the
oversight on the Internship fund. Distributes proposed amendments.

Jim Boyd, Interim Director, the Division of Community Services: Discussed the
community service program and budget. See attachment 1, Tab Community, pp 1-3 and
Pie Chart following.

Chairman Skarphol: We can read through that.

Boyd: That includes only the supplement, not our regular.

Chairman Skarphol: What is the total drain?
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Boyd: The total would be approximately $29M of that formula funds plus the supplemental
$5.5M

Chairman Skarphol: This biennium you are up about $4.5M, next time you will be down
by that $4.5M?

Boyd: Discusses Renaissance zones;, there are no 49 cities throughout the state.

Rep. Dosch: With 90% of your funding coming from federal government grants, given the
plight of our financial situation, do you see any reductions coming down.

Boyd: There could be some reductions, but we don't know what that could be. There is
not a good answer. Perhaps going quarter to quarter.

Chairman Skarphol: On your overall numbers you had, I'm assuming it is roughly $68 M
and an increase of roughly $12M. Give us a general feel for that.

Boyd: A lot of the funds, we have received about $70M in American Reinvestment
Recovery Act (ARRA) funds. We will need additional authority to spend out all of those
funds.

Chairman Skarphol: You have $70M and you are carrying over $25M. That wouid be
about $45M but you are showing a $56M decrease.

Boyd: There is in our base budget request where there was billed $5M for the Great
Plains Energy Efficiency Research Center. And $1M for the Blender pump program.

Sara Otte Coleman, Director, the Division of Tourism: See tab Tourism, pp1-5
See charts included. North Dakota has had the third largest tourism increase in the nation.

Chairman Skarphol: How have you segregated the tourism rooms from workers?
Otte Coleman: We are able to separate, accommodate leisure travels.
Chairman Skarphol: The lodging tax, explain that.

Otte Coleman: If one occupant occupies a hotel room for 30 days or longer, they do not
pay lodging tax, and no tax revenue is generated.

Rep. Dosch: There is a bill forthcoming to deal with that issue.

Chairman Skarphol: | am not looking so much for a fix but some information in other
areas.

. Otte Coleman: We will contact the tax department and get a chart together on that.

Rep. Monson:  You said Canadian visitors are up 40% and with their dollar at par, how
does that affect the dollars?
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Otte Coleman: We are seeing an increase in inquiries.

Rep. Dosch: Providing an answer to the question on impact, a bill has been filed.

There is an error on green sheets, p. 2, item 11 should that be corrected to a $5M change?
We did almost $2M worth of infrastructure projects with the Lewis and Clark and your
foundation, yet you are taking all of that out of your current budget. Are there no
infrastructure requests for the upcoming biennium?

Otte Coleman: We do see an increasing demand for infrastructure. We put together a plan
to fund about $200,000 a biennium and we get 5-10 times that in requests.
Because there were no dollars allocated to it, it may not go through.

Bill Shalhoob, Chairman of the Tourism Alliance Partnership (TAP): See written
testimony, Attachment # 2 and appendices.

Rep. Hawken: To what extent does the, for example the Red River zoo do you all work
together to build that infrastructure?

Shalhobb: Yes we do, they come to our meetings. Sara is good at getting everyone
together.

. Sheri Grossman, President, Destination Marketing Association Of North Dakota:

Provided testimony in support of marketing, See attachment # 3.

Rep. Monson: We are the only state that seems to be growing and we are spending the
least. You must be doing an efficient job.

Grossman: The Department knows how to use those funds. It needs more money.

Cole Carley, President/CEO of the Fargo-Moorhead Visitors Bureau: Spoke in support
and to enhance the tourism budget bill, emphasizing the $2.5M Enhancement Grants. No
printed testimony offered.

Terri Thiel, Executive Director of the Dickinson CVB: Testimony provided, see
Attachment # 5.

Randy Hatzenbuhier, President of the Theodore Roosevelt Medora Foundation of
Medora, North Dakota: Spoke in favor of HB 1018 See attachment # 6.

Beth Zander, Director the Division of Workforce Development: See Attachment # 2,
Tab Workforce, pp. 1-4. Providing jobs for America’s graduates is a retention tool.
Workforce enhancement grants are there to increase responsiveness to employer needs.
CDA is nationally recognized, that maﬁkes a difference.

Rep. Monson: The Workkeys, have you ever used ASVAB testing? That is free. Have
employers used it?
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Zander: | will check into that. She continued with testimony.

Chairman Skarphol: Who initially implemented that?

Zander: It was initiated in North Dakota approximately three and a half years ago.
Chairman Skarphol: Do we have any statistics on its success?

Zander: No, we do not. |

Chairman Skarphol: You refer to Williston, it is not on it's own, New Town is not on its
own.

Zander: Correct.

Chairman Skarphol: The Community Colleges and United Tribes, we haven't gotten there
yet. Explain how it works. Differentiate for us how TrainND and they use their dollars and
how you use these dollars.

Zander: TrainND utilizes dollars for employers. We believe in it. We are working well
together.

Chairman Skarphol: These grant dollars typically go to support the training program, not
to employers necessarily. We would like it consolidated in one location.

Zander: She continued with testimony and concluded.

Paul Lucy, Director, the Division of Economic Development and finance: Provided
testimony, See Attachment 2, Tab ED&F pp. 1-6. We are not asking for additional funding.
We are requesting the $400,000 to continue the program for the next biennium. Workers
need a facility to take their children. He spoke in support of in-state and out of state
companies that are locating here.

Rep. Hawken: Do you have a list of people who got the loans and where these centers
are located?

Lucy: It is written in my testimony. The numbers have changed since the package was
compiled.

Chairman Skarphol: Child care loans, you are going to move from $1.25M down to
$400,000. There is an $850,000 reduction; you are showing a $4.4M reduction.
Where is the rest of the reduction?

Govig: Some of it removing and some of it is adding. Refers to p. 5, side 2.

Chairman Skarphol: What are we anticipating for a salary increase? Is there a
percentage out there that is incorporated in the Governor's budget? Isit 3 and 37
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Tracy Finneman, Marketing Director: Provided testimony. See attachment 2, the
Commerce tab pp. 1-2.

Chairman Skarphol: Does the partners in marketing program require a match?
Finneman: 10%

Rep. Hawken: Reported that the Delta Sky magazine featured a comparison of North
Dakota and ....... (inaudible).

Justin Dever, Manager, Office of Innovation and Entrepreneurship: Attachment 2 Tab
Commerce p 1-2 of his testimony. He discussed the programs listed.

Chairman Skarphol: Centers of Excellence, give us a spread sheet of where we are at
since we started that whole thing. Just a one page summary.

Mark Nishet, Centers of Excellence Commission: Attachment 2 Tab Commerce 1-4
and the Centers of Excellence annual report brochure. He emphasized private sector
partners. Encouraging support.

Rep. Dosch: Take a look at the centers of excellence, how is that different from what the
two research universities are doing?

Nisbet: There are other things going on but the major research is done at the universities.
Chairman Skarphol: |s there a way to show that none of the money will change over?

Nisbet: It is set up so that if there wasn’t encugh call for money in one of those areas, the
research dollars couid go above $8M.

Dean Gorder, North Dakota Trade Office: Attachment 2, Tab North Dakota
Trade p 1- of printed testimony

Rep. Monson: Do we have trade offices internationally?
Gorder: Yes, in Kiev the Ukraine, in Kazakhstan.
Rep. Monson: Have you explored Taiwan?

Gorder: Yes, both Taiwan and China.

Rep. Monson: Missouri has a trade office over there and are interested in sharing an
office.

Govig: Referring to the Partner sectién of the handout. Attachment 2 Tab Partners p 1-2
of of Tab Partners. '

Chairman Skarphol: Where is the money reflected?
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Govig: Comments on the Energy Office. Attachment 2 Tab Energy Office p 1-2.

Al Christianson, Great River Energy: No printed testimony, spoke in favor of support for
HB 1018.

Ron Ness, Energy Power Commission: Spoke in favor of HB 1018. No printed testimony
provided.

Gene Vetter, Watford City Development Director: Spoke in favor of HB 1018. No
printed testimony provided. He stated that he is a full time professional.

David Straile {?), North American Coal: Spoke in favor of HB 1018.No printed testimony
provided. Did not register.

Govig: Concluded his testimony in favor of passing HB 1018.
Chairman Skarphol: We will take public comment until 12:00.

Public Comment

Kent Satrang, General Manager, Petro Serve USA: Offered public comment and spoke
in favor of HB 1018 See Attachment # 7.

Rep. Monson: | haven't seen very many blender pumps. | was under the impression we
could have E 15 if we wanted it. We could blend it and set it up. What are some of the
rules on that?

Satrang: If you use E 30... flexible fuel. It is a great partnership to be able to offer all of
those. You have four choices in gas, E30, E10E 85and ..... (Inaudible).

Rep. Hawken: How much ....a service station to put in a blender pump?

Satrang: About $5,000 per pump.

Chairman Skarpho!: Suppliers provide a $900,000 discount. Are you successful at that?
Satrang: It worked well last year. It is called the North Dakota blender pump program.
Justin Flaten, Garrison, North Dakota, JM Grain: Spoke in favor of HB 1018. No printed
testimony provided. He addressed the pea and lentil market. The product goes overseas
and through a broker or exporting agent. Transportation at an equitable rate is a problem.
Going into Canada then out is costly and time consuming. We could increase our sales if
we had better access to capital. 34

Rep. Monson: Do you have any plans to expand, say to fava beans?

Flaten: Yes, Lebanon is a customer. They are also interested in flax and sunflowers.
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Jeff Rotenberger, Bismarck, Mandan Chamber: Spoke in favor of HB 1018. No printed
testimony provided, He is in favor of the Idea Center, trade office and USS North Dakota.

Cal Kiewin, Economic Development of North Dakota: Spoke in favor of HB 1018
printed testimony provided. See Attachment # 8.

Connie Ova, CEO for the Jamestown/Stutsman Development Corporation (JSDC):
Spoke in favor of HB 1018 printed testimony provided. See Attachment # 9.

Eric Johnson, CEO Avanac: Present at the suggestion of Senator Tony Grindberg.
Provided printed testimony, Attachment # 10.

Chairman Skarphol: SB 2056 is being introduced in Education.
Other printed testimony was provided, See Attachment #s 11-20.

Meeting adjourned.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the Department of
Commerce and relating to the North Dakota Development Fund, centers of
excellence program, the Office of Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency, and
centers of workforce excellence grants as it pertains to the Department. of Commerce.

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Skarphol: General discussion regarding information about the Department of
Commerce. There are so many programs in there. The Workforce Enhancement Grants
versus the Centers of Excellence for Workforce.

Tammy Dolan, OMB Analyst: Distributed a spreadsheet detailing Recommendation by
program. | did handout a worksheet with a detailed budget for each one of their divisions that
would show the '07-'09 expenditures, the 2011 budget and expenditures through June 30,
2010, see Handout # 1.

Chairman Skarphol: This gives us ....

Dolan: | am not sure if this is what you are meaning or if you wanted more program based like
Innovate North Dakota or the different programs within the agency. This goes through each
page like the Commerce administration division. For each of the appropriation lines within
that division it will show you their 2007-'09 expenditures, the current biennium’s budget, how
they will be reflect for 2011-13 and then the executive recommendation and the amounts
percentage changes in there as well.

Chairman Skarphol: The first three pages are pertinent to Commerce Administration. The
next three pages are for innovation. If you go back through this you will see various entities.

Dolan: Yes. If you go three more pagesin it is the Tourism Division. Two pages back it is
Workforce Development on p. 9, with Economic Development on p. 12. Continues to explain
the layout of the document.

Chairman Skarphol: This gives us the administrative costs of each one of these divisions.
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Dolan: Yes. It will show you salaries and wages, operating expenses, capital asset lines and
special lines as on p. 2 are discretionary grants.

Chairman Skarphol: This is printed out of BARS, right? Can | go to the Web Site?
Dolan: Yes.

Chairman Skarphol: This is the detail level you are going to see our web site, there may be
more detail. Other details could be obtained from the agencies.

Chairman Skarphol: The North Dakota Trade Office is a contractual agreement. .. ..

Dolan: Right that is why they show only operating season services except for the current
biennium they used a little bit for ... .but basically it is their grants account code that they have
but it is their contract that they have with the trade office.

Chairman Skarphol: | did ask for a history on that particular office as to the appropriation and
cost share for the last several biennia.

Sara Chamberlin, Legislative Council Representative: A document #11. 9107.01 was
distributed earlier.

Chairman Skarphol: It continues to grow by $.5M each session to the Trade Office.
Rep. Hawken: No, it is more than that. Oh, the Trade Office. Don't any of them share?
Chairman Skarphol: Each division as far as their IT costs.

Rep. Hawken: A lot of them are the same office, right?

Dolan: Right, they just allocate it out to the various divisions so you can see the total cost of
the division instead of lumping it together....

Chairman Skarphot: Based on FTEs?

Dolan: | would have to verify that. Probably based more on the types of PCs and different
equipment that they use.

Chairman Skarphol: You don't reflect FTEs in BARS?
Dolan: Itis the last line on the last page for each division. If a department reorganizes from

one division to another throughout the biennium, you might see some larger adjustments for
those purposes.
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Begin Recording # 13739

Chairman Skarphol: Called the Committee to order to discuss HB 1018. He called to the
podium Paul Govig, Interim Commissioner Department of Commerce:

Referring to HB 1018 and the Green sheets he begin discussion of the Centers of
Excellence the funding for the Centers of Excellence (CE). According to the green sheet
there is one time fund for CE. Is there not also a transfer that we should be considering for
$5M.

Govig: The total is $20M

Chairman Skarphol: How about the Centers of Excellence?

Govig: Distributes Attachment # 1.

Chairman Skarphol: We need to know if it is duplicative or stands on its own.

Govig: Describes the chart on Attachment # 1. The $20M that you were talking about is
divided, it goes to the CE Commission, similar to what we have right now and then we have

the Centers of Workforce Excellence Council. That is the difference.

Rep. Hawken: Has the Workforce always been around or is that coming now because
we now call the 2 year institutions Centers of Excellence?

Govig: We have always had the Workforce Enhancement grants and the group that was
working with them was the Council, so¢ it is the same group. Those are the two groups that

make the determination by reviewing the applications. Take CE, it becomes the Centers of
Research Excellence (CRE) and there is proposed $13M.

Chairman Skarphol: Explain matching dollars as described in the box on the right,
Attachment 1.

Govig: Yes, it has additional information, CE requires $2:00 of matching funds for $1:00 of
state funds. The matching funds must include at least $1:00 in cash, $.50 from the private
sector and in kind which could be the remainder. We have to have itemized values.
Chairman Skarphol: As to have explanation repeated.

Govig: The whole thing could be in cash.

Chairman Skarphol: What if it is only $1:007

Govig: There has to be $2:00 of matching funds for every $2:00 of state funds and they
can be comprised of a few different things.

Chairman Skarphol: The matching funds, these are from the private sector. So if the
private sector has $1:00 in cash, they will have $1:00 of the in-kind.
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Govig: The in-kind has to comprised of at least $1:00 in cash.

Chairman Skarphol: Either you have a dollar in cash and a dollar in in-kind or you don't
have $2:00. |s there a difference in in-kind?

Justin Dever, Director: One dollar of cash half of which must be from the private sector,
the other half could be federal funds. The other could be cash assets.

Chairman Skarphol: Explain how you get to the $2.00 value.

Dever: Two dollars, at least half of it has to be cash the other half can be in-kind.
Chairman Skarphol: Only half of the in-kind has to have an itemized value.

Govig:  All of it has to have an itemized value. If there is in-kind, we have to have
verifiable value for that. Under CRE there are two other sub categories, the eminent
researcher grant program and that can be up to $2M per biennium. The CE Infrastructure
grants up to $3M per biennium. If they both receive the maximum amount then it drops the
$13M to $8M. CRE has a total of $13M but the two subsections can go to $2M or $3M per
category.

Rep. Williams: How much of this is new money and new programs?

Govig: The $3M. Itis considered a one time appropriation and the transfer of the center is
an additional $5M. You appropriated it for this biennium and because it was not feasible to
do that, it is being proposed for this program..

Rep. Williams: How much of this is new money?

Govig: The $15M.

Rep. Williams: New Money.

Rep. Martinson: Would you have a problem if we put money in the CE and let
you.....Could we make your budget a little simpler?

Govig: The funding is most important and it is very successful. What it is called is not as
important from our perspective as it is to get it funded.

Rep. Martinson: A Center of Excellence for every new idea is confusing and unnecessary.
Govig: No, like most things, if you understand it its straight forward.

Chairman Skarphol: | would like to see the previous names of some of those things along
with the current name. Some of it changes, 2057 seems to be a mirror image of this.

Govig: Some of it changes.
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Dever: SB 2057 also includes $23M for this, there is a $20M difference.

Chairman Skarphol: | thought it the fiscal note on 2057 was $33M.

Dever: 2057 also includes $10M for EPSCORE.

Chairman Skarphol: What is the current appropriation for EPSCORE?

Dever: The Governor's budget ...

Dolan: ltis $7M. Itis an increase of $3M in Higher Ed budget there is a $6.5M increase.
Chairman Skarphol: EPSCORE is in the Higher Ed budget as opposed to .....

Rep. Martinson: We are looking at taking money from the $5M turn back for BSC to finish
their fourth floor which would be about $4.3356M. We are looking at taking funding from
other programs, shifting funding to tourism along with more marketing money. More
funding for the ABM site and in Minot providing $500,000 for their base realignment
commission like we did in Grand Forks and Fargo.

Rep. Hawken: It is what we did with recruitment training and retention. | may need an
education, we hoped at its creation that it would go to a business. We are still keeping the

fairness aspect. Do we continue to put money into all of these?

Rep. Williams: Having met several times with several groups, | do not recall a specific
dollar amount coming out of that.

Dever: Yes, itis now SB 2057. it did contain specific dollar amounts.

Chairman Skarphol: Why is it on both sides? Either it is an interim bill or it is part of your
budget.

Dever: HB 1018 is the Governor's recommendation for CE.

Govig: Any time we can move the Universities closer to the market to try to interject some
market forces to create jobs and to create business and spin offs.

Chairman Skarphol: Are any of these entities, are they self-sustaining?
Are they profitable?

Govig: It is very much centered on jobs. If private sector jobs are created, the state wilt
benefit through increased revenue. See Attachment # 2. We have private sector jobs and
Center jobs.

Chairman Skarphol: Do any pay corporate income tax.

Dever: Yes, we don't have records of their tax payments.
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Rep. Monson: Do the new businesse_s end up being profitable enough to pay taxes?
Dever: Intelligent Insights in Fargo is one example.

Chairman Skarphol: Does a center itself make a profit?

Dever: There are no state dollars for EERC. They survive on research contracts.

Chairman Skarphol: | would like to see another column that would show any of these
paying taxes. :

Rep. Martinson: | would feel better if we just gave Williston money for training. What are
the 167 jobs they created?

Dever: These are individuals, there are 4000. We are not counting all the people. These
are people that went to the ....Training Program.

Rep. Martinson: What NEW jobs were created? You can’t name any jobs that we
created.

Govig: We filled some much needed jobs

Rep. Martinson: It says here “jobs created”. You would agree that you didn't create any
jobs.

Govig: We filled those jobs.

Rep. Dosch: The CE, are they research jobs? They stay as long as the funding lasts and
then they go away.. He uses the Blarney Stone as an example. As we go through this Is
how many equity...We are putting at very high risk the taxpayer dollars. Do we have any
equity in these that will eventually provide a taxpayer return?

Govig: There will be eventual ownership.

Dever: Ownership in the IP(?) may not necessarily be ownership in the businesses.

Rep. Dosch: What royalties have we received back?

Dever: The royalties would be received to the State General fund. The agreements are
between the institution and the private businesses.

Rep. Dosch: This is taxpayer money; | am interested in finding out what the return is.
Govig: We will see what we can find out about that.
Chairman Skarphol: | would have no difficulty with an appropriation to fund the Centers of

Excellence from the revenue produced by the existing CE
The 167 jobs were existing and were filled. Not 167 new jobs created.
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Rep. Hawken: She described the creation of Centers of Excellence. Is the APUC report a
CE because we have been providing dollars for years?

Govig: We wouldn't describe the ag product Utilization Commission program as a Centers
of Excellence, even though it is an excelient program.

Rep. Hawken: Rep. Dosch said that we are providing some stimulus to that sector.

Chairman Skarphol: If you look at the grand total we've invested, $59.96M. It would be
~ nice to see a 4% return on that.

Rep. Monson: In the years of operation, will you give us examples of real jobs, not just job
training?

Govig: We will get some examples.

Chairman Skarphol: How are the ones at the Center funded? General fund, research
grants..

Dever: The foot note at the bottom of Attachment #2 gives examples.
Chairman Skarphol: Other questions?

Govig: We are getting back together on Wednesday morning, do you have specific
questions?

Chairman Skarphol: | would like a comparison of the current biennium with the proposed
biennium. An explanation of terminology and incorporate in that S B 2057.

Rep. Monson: Why are we changing the names in here?

Govig: It is to make it easier to understand where the college or university should access
the program. We need to do some work on this end to make it more understandable.

Chairman Skarphol: Discussion closed.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the the
department of commerce; relating to the biofuel blender pump incentive program, centers
of research excellence program, centers of entrepreneurship excellence grants, and the
internship fund; relating to the North Dakota development fund, incorporated, centers of
excellence program, the office of renewable energy and efficiency, and centers of
workforce excellence grants; to provide a continuing appropriation; to provide exemptions;
to provide for transfers; to provide an effective date; to provide an expiration date; and to

. declare an emergency
Minutes:

You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Skarphol: Brought the committee to order to take up HB 1018. Qur intention is
to discuss the Department Of Commerce budget.

Scott Davis, Executive Director, North Dakota Indian Affairs Commission: When |
started, | was given the task of addressing three issues: health, education, and jobs. We're
trying to figure out how to get more jobs to the reservations. The first step was an
assessment of each tribe. We did at least three visits to each tribe, to the tribal colleges,
the communities, asking questions about challenges, barriers, opportunities, threats, etc.
We wanted to know what the locals felt was most needed for their reservations. The tribal
colleges seem to be the best place to house any kind of commerce activity, and they all
have a business incubator within their college. They've already done assessments of what
would help their communities. The challenge is that the tribal colleges don't have strong
business and accounting curriculums. A lot of this funding would go to strengthening those
areas at each coliege, and | would be in support of the additional $100,000 towards the
American Indian Business Development fund office.

Chairman Skarphol: How did we fund the study? Where is it on the existing budget?
w Paul Govig, Acting Commissioner, North Dakota Department of Commerce: That was

funded through the contract with Prairie Consulting, in the pariners program section. We
are requesting an additional $100,000 for the next biennium.
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Rep. Hawken: Are there any funds within your agency you could transfer, if there was
something you particularly felt needed to be done?

Govig: The project managers are always interested in working on projects throughout the
state, on reservations, small town, big town, doesn't matter, and we’'ll continue to do that.
Specifically having someone focus on Native American reservations and issues is what we
feel is very important, because the needs there are so significant.

Rep. Hawken: You are out of money for this biennium, so | was wondering if there were
other funds you could tap into if you saw something that really needed to happen.

Govig: We have used a small amount of the commissioner’s discretionary funds to fill in a
few gaps.

Chairman Skarphol: What do you envision the tribal colleges doing with the $200,0007

Davis: There are some great ideas out there for private business. A lot of the students are
older than average college students, and they really know their environment and what
would fit. Some examples are coffee shops, butcher blocks, small retail stores. Right now
on the reservations are just your basics, like gas stations and grocery stores.

Chairman Skarphol: So you would envision at least a portion of it being direct grants to
start businesses.

Davis: Grants for business, but more of the curriculum, more of the in depth study of
establishing a business.

Chairman Skarphol: You envision the colleges helping individuals with the management
of the business?

Davis: Yes. In my view, it takes some hand holding for some time before a person can get
comfortable with their own business. Back in the days, my parents had those things, as did
every reservation, but for some reason that went away. It may have been because of the
dependency on government funding. We need to direct our attention away from the federal
areas that hinder our people and go more private. Establishing chambers of commerce on
our reservations is the focus of our partnership, and non-profits as well. They withstand the
administrations that come and go, and tribal politics, too.

Rep. Hawken: There are some grants we started last session that go directly to the tribal
colleges. Perhaps you could piggy back with those dollars to build some of this.

Govig: Excellent point. It is a shift to focus more on the colleges than the tribal councils,
because of the continuity associated with those organizations. We think it would be a good
shift to partner with the colleges.

Rep. Dosch: Where do the profits from the casinos and the oil revenue go?
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Davis: | can't say about the oil fields, that's an area I'm still learning about. The casino
revenue is strictly for roads, education and social services.

Rep. Dosch: If you are asking all the other taxpayers of ND to chip in, we should get some
answers from those that have the oil wells and the casinos. | haven’t seen any reduction in
the requests for money since the oil fields have opened up. | know the state pays for the
roads and you don’t pay any tax on gasoline. If your own people aren't willing to support
themselves and their own businesses by coming up with a couple hundred thousand
dollars, why should we be asking the taxpayers to?

Govig: As we see this, we expect there would be ownership or some contributions by the
colleges, through time or money or partnerships. If there is ownership, there is a greater
chance to succeed. We want to work out a plan that is beneficial to all the reservations and
the state of North Dakota.

Chairman Skarphol: In the current biennium you have $100,000, and you spent a fair
amount of it on that study. How do you plan to spend that $100,000 and the additional
$100,000 in ways that would complement what you've already done?

Paul: This is a baseline study, so it gives us a handle on the capabilities and capacities
are on the reservations. Going forward, we feel there will be more interaction with the
colleges and reservations, and we want to come up with a matrix to help create and
support businesses and expand the economic base. We have to come up with a proposal
next biennium.

Chairman Skarphol: If the committee were inclined to go along with the additional
$100,000, what do you think the likelihood is that we could get participation from the tribes
to match that?

Davis: Dollar for dollar would be a challenge for some tribes; I'm not sure about tribal
colleges, though they do have more financial stability and may have more of a resource to
match those dollars, or possibly do an in-kind match that would be beneficial. Why doesn’t
a tribe tax itself on gas or tobacco? | think it gets back to education, and this ties back to
why tribal colleges are a good way to sell these ideas we as a state already know are
beneficial to a community. Historically for tribes it's been mostly federal. The foliow up of
this report and putting it into action is the basis of the extra $100,000.

Govig: It would be difficult for the tribes to come up with a cash match, but in-kind might be
a good way to get a partnership going.

Chairman Skarphol: | am not opposed to in-kind, but sometimes it becomes very
creative. We want to encourage the tribes to be more participatory in this. Do get us a
copy of that study. We have had committee discussion about your budget. With regard to
the costs associated with monitoring the existing centers, we need to have some idea what
that cost is. We need dollar amounts because, frankly, we're not certain we're going to
fund Centers of Excellence. That doesn't mean we won't give you some money. There's a
provision that allows Centers of Excellence dollars to be utilized for some administrative
things, so we’re wondering how much is required for the monitoring.
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Justin Dever, Manager, Office of Innovation and Entrepreneurship, ND Department of
Commerce: The current monitoring process we utilize includes annual reports, which is an
expense borne by the centers themselves; site visits; quarterly updates, which costs are
also the centers’. There are agreed upon procedures we use, related to HB 1060, and
those costs are born by the universities. HB 1060 would allow the universities to use
center dollars, but currently they cannot.

Chairman Skarphol: [f you are going to do this at the half-way point, and then again at the
end, there shouldn't be a substantial cost, as opposed to doing an annual audit.

Dever: Full fiscal audits are considerably more expensive than the agreed upon
procedures. It can be $15,000-$20,000 per audit.

Chairman Skarphol: What's the cost of the reports you're getting now, in comparison?

Dever: Half or less. The statute currently requires us to monitor centers for a minimum of
six years and a maximum of ten, and we're allowed to spend up to 2.5% of the funds
appropriated each biennium, currently $375,000, and we've used less than $50,000, so
nowhere near the allowed amount.

Chairman Skarphol: What will change with the name change from Workiorce
Enhancements Grants to Centers of Workforce Excellence?

Dever: Mainly rebranding. As presented in HB 1018, it would continue to be the
Workforce Enhancement Council, they can make recommendations to Commerce, and the
Commerce commissioner makes the final determination of awards.

Chairman Skarphol: Centers of Workforce Excellence has a million dollar increase.
Dever: That puts it back at the funding leve! of the 07-02 biennium.

Chairman Skarphol: We have discussed the commitment that we made in '05 for $50
million. We are calculating there is $60 million today. Centers of Excellence has not
become self supporting, so the sense is it may go away. We might give the Commerce
Department some dollars for investing in critical situations and allow for the accumulation of
those dollars. We anticipate there will be a profit involved from this investment, instead of
constantly giving away grant money and never realizing a return. What do you think of that
concept?

Govig: We think the current program is an excellent program and should be continued.
There are benefits to the state. As far as having some type of revolving structure, we have
seen that work out very well.

Chairman Skarphol: We would like to see more of that, and less of the grants.
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Rep. Hawken: We don't all agree on all the points of that, but regardless of what it is
called, we seem to have moved away from the initial goals of the program. 1 want to see
you continue the good works, though, because there are valuable parts.

Chairman Skarphol: How much is in the development fund for you to work with today?

Dean Reese, CEO, North Dakota Development Fund: As of January 1, 2011, had
approximately $13.5 million, projected cash availability. Based on our commitments, |
project as of June 30, 2011 it will be about $8.6 million to go into the new biennium. We
average about 6-6.5 million in projects per year, for the last three years, and we pay all our
costs through our revenues generated. Any excess goes back into the projects in the state
to hopefully create additional jobs and wealth for our state. We have not asked for any
additional funding because we're in a strong position.

Chairman Skarphol: You either take an equity position or somehow loan the money, and
help get new businesses up and running. Can you give us a breakdown of the number of
businesses that you actually helped facilitate and how many have been successful?

Reese: We average about 26 to 32 projects a year, but going back to 1991 when we were
created | would say we've helped about 464 businesses. About 67-72% are still operating.
| believe the original intent was to have this turn into a revolving fund, which | think it has.
We've netted about $27 million of funding and today have vested about $85 million.

Chairman Skarphol: Most new businesses are not successful. How do you rank the risk?

Reese: We have a risk rating system that goes from one to six. We look at management,
experience, market they are entering, capital, etc., and we use consultants if we need to.
We're not a bank, and our loss rate at the fund is about 17.5%. My goa! is between 15-
25%.

Rep. Dosch: Differentiate what you do and what Centers of Excellence do.

Reese: They're there for the industry, as a hub, in energy, IT, etc. We need to work with
them to grow them and get them out of the university system and move them into the
commercial world. From the development fund standpoint, we work with them in the seed
capitol area, get them into the first stage to commercialize their idea, and get their product
into the market. We help from the funding standpoint.

Govig: We see funding from different sources at different time frames. Centers of
Excellence is the beginning stage. The development fund comes in at the later stages.

Chairman Skarphol: At the beginning of the development fund, there were more
significant failures than there are today, more risk and more losses because of the early
policies. If we were to fund some type of beginning stage program, which Commerce
monitored, and was different than the development fund, that that fund could come in [ater
and complement, | think you could be more successful than you were in the early ‘90s.
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Reese: | would agree with you. | have a banking background, and funding is viewed
differently. My predecessors had a tendency to invest all their dollars up front, ali at one
time. Dealing with a start-up, they generally don’t need all that money up front; getting it in
stages is more useful to the business and cuts down risk to the fund. We have a better
success rate with this model.

Govig: Funding is just one part of the equation; the follow up after you fund, the
monitoring, is extremely important, and the development fund staff do an excellent job.

Rep. Hawken: In the Centers of Excellence program, there is usually a two for one dollar
match. Would you envision this counting as part of income on a new program?

Govig: You could have that type of parameter on a new program. Generally the
companies the fund deals with are bringing something to the table, some assets, cash,
equipment, buildings, etc.

Rep. Hawken: One of our concerns is we're not entirely sure there were that many jobs
created with Centers of Excellence. In the development fund world, do you look at how
many jobs are created or filled?

Reese: Yes we do. We send out job surveys and advance our dollars based on jobs
created, generally within a two year timeframe. There is a report recipients have to fill out.
We also look at the economic impact of that company.

Chairman Skarphol: Why shouldn’t the state benefit from making any investment over the
long term? It seems like the development fund is a break even situation, it's just self-
sustaining without growth. |s that correct?

Reese: | don't know that I'd agree with that. We received $27 million, but we've revolved it
to $85 million. We've covered all the losses we've had, plus some return back to the fund.
If you took our revenues minus expenses and charge offs, our return is about .50%.

Govig: They also cover all their operating expenses with that.

Rep. Martinson: Why wouldn't we want to give him the Centers of Excellence money?
Chairman Skarphol: | also wonder if we had given you the $60 million if we'd have had a
better return on our investment. You can substantiate what you have accomplished. We
have not been insistent enough, as legislators, that the Centers of Excellence do the same.

Govig: We feel the NDSU study verifies there have been significant good things
happening, but | know you have a disagreement with that.

Chairman Skarphol: | have a disagreement with who did the study, | don’t view that as an
objective third party.

Rep. Martinson: When you meet with the governor, talk to him about what we're talking
about here. We're not really talking about cutting your budget much, but doing some
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shifting, maybe some infrastructure things. You and the governor can say, we can either
help the committee, or hang tough and hope the Senate changes it, or we can suggest
changes. You can tell him we really don't like Centers of Excellence. It is not about
money, but about return. Get rid of the board and you make the decisions, if nothing else.

Recording error.

Chairman Skarphol: Is the committee inclined to do that, or do we want to remove it
altogether? This would be similar in nature to a Centers of Excellence entity, from my
perspective.

Rep. Dosch: | see no purpose to merge it in, given the direction of the committee. | think
we just leave it out and vote on the bill as it is.

Rep. Hawken: One of the programs we were talking about was real high risk, and one was
less. Isn't that what we're stili talking about here?

Chairman Skarphol: One is to an individual, one is a grant program to technology based
businesses. We'd leave the flexibility to the commerce department.

Rep. Dosch: For the section of the bill we were talking about, | understood it that if they are
awarded $50,000, and if in fact they are successful, then they have to pay back $100,000.
These are such high risk, though, nine out of every 10 will fail; the odds of us seeing any
money on this are almost nil.

Chairman Skarphol: | do think both have risk, they're both grant programs, one to an
individual and one to a company, both most likely technology based.

Govig: HB 1059 refers to technology start up businesses, and the other is individuals
moving new technology into commercialization.

Chairman Skarphol: What are the committee’s wishes? We've talked about moving the
language without the funding....

Rep. Hawken: There was a motion and I'm the carrier.

Sara Chamberlin, Legislative Councll There was a do not pass and move these sections
into HB 1018.

Chairman Skarphol: We may want to look at a change in the language, making them
permissive. Rather than creating them, give them the capability of creating.

Rep. Monson: My notes say that we moved to adopt the amendments to 1059, and moved
to amend section 1 into 1018, but it does say ‘shall administer’ so if we do what you said,
we’d want to make that ‘shall’ a mag}’ I move we further amend our previous amendment,
in section one of both 1058 and 1059 to say ‘may’ instead of ‘shall.’

Rep. Hawken: Second.
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Chairman Skarphol: Any discussion? If not, we'li do a voice vote. Motion carried.

Chamberlin: Moving on to the topic of Centers of Excellence, please see the handout
which explains changes made to HB 1018. See attachment 1.

Chairman Skarphol: Committee, are we committed to doing this? If we are, we need a
motion to remove sections 4, 5, 9, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 25, 27, and 30.

Rep. Martinson: | move.

Rep. Williams: Second.

Chairman Skarphol: We have a motion and a second. Discussion?

Rep. Dosch: My concern is the unintended consequences. | don't know the affect this has
on agreements and things already put in place. We have $50 million out there on various

projects, and I'm concerned about removing all references.

Chairman Skarphol: We would ask LC to provide us with a document with regard to that
prior to this going to full committee.

Rep. Monson: | feel confident that the way we're moving forward with this, any old
agreements will be taken care of by whatever new infrastructure we put in place. Things
aren't going to dramatically change as far as funding.

Chairman Skarphol: Voice vote motion carried. Section 7. Section 7 and Section 8 could
be combined into something. You should have another handout, see attachment 2a.

Chamberlin: | have a rough draft of what that might look like, if we incorporated that (into
1018). See attachment 2b.

Rep. Monson: Online 4, could we jﬁst strike the word ‘commission,’ then it wouidn't matter
who did it, or is that too simple?

Chairman Skarphol: That would cover it, but on the next line we'd need to change
‘commission’ to ‘department.’

Rep. Monson: Looking at all the other sections of code in the attachment, some work will
need to be done on some of the other language in different sections of code, to get rid of the
word ‘commission.’

Chairman Skarphol: These are due to expire, so they'll go away by themselves. We
should say ‘department and the legislative assembly.’

Rep. Hawken: How much of the post award monitoring does the commission actually do,
or do you (Dever) do most of that?

Dever: The department gathers the information and reports back to the commission.
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Rep. Hawken: Basically you are doing it already.

Chairman Skarphol: Does anybody have any consternation about any of these changes?
Rep. Dosch: I'm fine with them.

Dever: Letter h may not be relevant because Century Code was amended so it does not
apply to Centers of Excelience, back in 2007. Also, the business incentive accountability
law applies for a two year period only, and would have expired by now if entered into prior to
2007.

Rep. Monson: Are there still some business incentive funds out there that were awarded
that need to be monitored or accounted for, or is it all gone?

Dever: There were no agreements, just a potential for it. It was there in the case of a
Center of Excellence providing something of at least $25,000 value to a business.

Rep. Monson: Check on that to make sure there were not cases.

Chairman Skarphol: What about item b on page 1 of attachment 2b, does it cover that?
Could we incorporate both ideas into b?

Dever: Item h may not be necessary, but wouldn’t hurt anything if left in. ltem ¢ should be
reworded to say ‘in compliance with’ ND Century Code.

Rep. Hawken: On item d, is there a specific timeline?
Dever: When they apply for these funds, they set forward a timeline.

Chairman Skarphol: We're amenable to suggestions on making this more succinct, so
long as we don't feel it's trying to circumvent what we're trying to accomplish.

Rep. Martinson: Why don’t we give them a day to look at this.

Chairman Skarphol: I'm okay with that, and LC can make some draft adjustments as well.
That takes care of 7 and 8, let's move on to 26. We need to decide how much and what
we'll call it.

Inaudible section.

Rep. Martinson: | would like to make a motion on the transfer on the Great Plains Applied
Energy Research Center. | move we take $4.335 million from that section and appropriate it
to the BSC for the completion of the fourth floor of the National Energy Center of
Excellence, and that we appropriate $600,000 of that to the purchase of the Nakoma anti-
ballistic missile site, under section 21.
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Rep. Monson: | second that. That's the Stanley R. Mickelsen Safeguard Complex. |t
wouldn’t be just purchase, but the whole development of the purchase for that project.

Chairman Skarphol: We have a motion and a second. Discussion? We'll do a roll call
vote. Motion carries 6-0-0. Anything else on this one? Have we covered the various
aspects needed at this point in time, in regards to policy? All right, thoughts on the dollars.

Rep. Hawken: | would like a little time before changing anything, but bottom line is $5
million in training and recruitment for early childhood.

Chairman Skarphol: Do you have an idea where we might find the $5 million?

Rep. Hawken: Yes, some of it. The grant portion is $400,000, and there are a couple other
places in there. It doesn't quite get there, so it would depend how we move things.

Rep. Dosch: Then we should also have discussion about money for tourism, maybe for
advertising, and a portion committed to infrastructure. Last biennium we provided $2 million
for various infrastructure projects for tourism, and a portion, at least $1 million, of that needs
to stay in. You can find budget information on the green sheets, page 2 #11, and on the bill
itself page 2 lines 26-27.

Rep. Martinson: Second.

Sara Otte Coleman, Director, Department of Commerce Tourism Division: There are a
couple of options for that. We did work with the industry associations during the interim to
develop a plan for comparing and ranking large infrastructure projects, as required from the
hill last session. Another option is we have a small infrastructure expansion grant program
that has established guidelines, those may need to be revisited.

Chairman Skarphol: So you would envision an $800,000 large project aspect and
$200,000 small, of this $1 million?

Coleman: We can take a look at the best breakdown of that. We might want to keep larger
dollar amounts available for destination-type expansion or development projects. Every
year we get way more requests for grants than we can award on the small grant projects.
We look at need in a region, who can we partner with. We want to get away from
maintenance and deferred maintenance kind of projects. The intent is to open more
experiences and opportunities, rather than maintaining or fixing them.

Chairman Skarphol: Maybe if there were a deteriorating facility, it could be brought back
to a more suitable envircnment, it could become a potential destination in that area.

Coleman: Absolutely we would look at that, especially if they had a good track record.

Chairman Skarphol: Sometimes thére are some dollars there for grants, too. There may
be opportunities to do sharing or matching, if it's properly planned out.
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Coleman: Yes, there is synergy there and it could be beneficial to pool funds with others. |
will get you copies of the existing guidelines and the plan we put together over the interim.

Chairman Skarphol: Other points? Everyone comfortable with the budget
recommendation, with regard to the general funding taking place? We have a motion for
the $1 million for infrastructure for tourism. Any further discussion? Motion carries on a
voice vote. Further topics: let's move on to the ag products utilization funding. We had
some discussion about the ethanol motor vehicle fund and the declining trend. State mill
profits helped and seem to be logical.

Tammy Dolan, Office of Management and Budget: | have the list of beneficiaries of the
ethanol motor fuels. One is SBARE, 'which goes to grants to do research type products,
new and upcoming commodities, so it is part of the ag research budget. It's not in
commerce. It also goes to the ethanol incentive fund, which goes to commerce.

Chairman Skarphol: Like we used to pay to the ethanol plants at one time. Are we still
making those payments? To which plants?

Govig: Yes. We can send you the information of the most current payments we've made.
Right now it's a very small amount. The fund has been paid out, with the market the way it
Is.

Dolan: Three entities get a share, and it's a declining revenue source, by aimost 17% a
year. SBARE gets four cents of the refund, ethanol incentive fund gets one cent, and APUC
gets the other two cents.

Chairman Skarphol: And that two cents amounts to about $110,000.

Dolan: Based on my calculations of the decline, maybe that much for next biennium.

Chairman Skarphol: And the 5% figure from the state mill generated $600,0007

Dolan: That's correct for the last fiscal year. If they don’t make a profit, no money goes into
this fund, and it can't be distributed out to the various entities.

Chairman Skarphol. Which side of the formula would (Department of Commerce) be most
comfortable with, the state mill profits, or the ethanol, or both? I'm just floating the idea, so
you aren't stuck with a declining revenue source.

Dolan: | can put a schedule together on that, to show all the pieces.

Rep. Hawken: When it says in the detail ‘Economic Development Grants,’ is that the
development fund? Looking at the OMB document, page 15.

Govig: That wouldn't be the development fund.

Dolan: Explained the amounts on the document.
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Paul Lucy, Economic Development and Finance Division, Department of Commerce:
There was a USDA grant award to APUC that if certain applicants qualify for those funds,
they can access the grant funds rather than general fund appropriations. It will go away at a
certain point if the funds aren't expended.

Rep. Monson: | move we find $250,000 within this budget for Task Force 21 Committee at
Minot Air Force Base.

Rep. Martinson: Second.

Rep. Hawken: What are you proposing to do?

Rep. Martinson: We gave Fargo and Grand Forks money last time, and we should have
included Minot. Minot will probably lose a missile wing with the new treaty, and this would

help them fund some of their activities.

Chairman Skarphol: Further comments? We have a motion and a second. Motion carries
by voice vote. Anything else? We will break.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of hill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the the
department of commerce; to create and enact a new chapter to title 17, a new chapter
to title 54, and two new sections to chapter 54-60 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to the biofuel blender pump incentive program, centers of research exceilence
program, centers of entrepreneurship excellence grants, and the internship fund; to
amend and reenact sections 10-30.5-02, 15-69-01, 15-69-02, 15-69-03, 15-69-04,
15-69-05, 15-69-06, 54-44.5-09, 54-60-21, 54-60-22, and 54-60-23 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota development fund, incorporated,

. centers of excellence program, the office of renewable energy and efficiency, and
centers of workforce excellence grants; to provide a continuing appropriation; to
provide exemptions; to provide for transfers; to provide an effective date; to provide
an expiration date; and to declare an emergency

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Skarphol: Calied the Committee to order to discuss HB 1018 and asked the
Clerk to note that all are present, including Rep. Hawken who is slightly delayed.

We have a copy of the listing of the proposed changes, see Handout # 1, prepared by
Legislative Council. It reflects the changes to Rep. Hawken's child care measures. On the
Green sheet p. 2, we have one item that we haven't talked about. item # 10 adds four jobs
for American Graduate Programs which receive federal funding of $100,000. We have not
addressed this in the amendment. An advocate for this was the former Workforce director.,

Rep. Dosch: (Not recorded) We ought to take it out.

Chairman Skarphol: We want to take out federal programs rather than continue with
them.

Rep. Williams: Adds funding for four jobs, the American Graduate Program which
. receives federal funding in 2009-'11. Did that just start in 20097

Paul Govig, Interim Commissioner: It started...... I am assuming it did.

Chairman Skarphol: Addressing OMB, can you tell us?
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Govig: Possibly, it started the biennium before. It is a recent program and the whole idea
is to be self sustaining. It has to find other funding sources.

Chairman Skarphol: If it were started last time, is it to continue the four that were created
or to add four more?

Govig: To continue what we have.

Tammy Dolan, OMB Analyst: Yes, itis. Itis not an expansion but to continue.
Chairman Skarpho!: That is anticipated to be the last request?

Dolan: !t would not require another request; it is taking longer to process.
Govig: Some information was provided on the different centers.

Chairman Skarphol: Addressing Dolan, Can you tell us what was in the budget in '09-
11? Was it $100,000 previously?

Dofan: The funding sources were from Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Governor's Set
Aside funding dollars, and some American Reinvestment and Recovery Act (ARRA)
funding. That was to get it started.

Sara Chamberlin, Legislative Council Representative: for the 2009-'11 funding there
was $67,870 of Federal funding for this program and some was received from WIA in the
amount of $33,935 and that came the Job Service. There was $33,935 that came through
the Department of Human Services through their federal vocational rehabilitation.
Chairman Skarphol: None of that money is available? That would be about $133,000.
Chamberlin: $670,870.

Chairman Skarphol: That is the two sources of the money, not in addition.

Rep. Dosch: (Not recorded). Move to take it out

Rep. Williams: Second

Voice Vote: Motion carries

Rep. Dosch: On the first page of the green sheet, item # 3, the onetime funding of
$125,000. My notes say that is for testing adulits.

Chairman Skarphol: My notes say that it is primarily for promotion of to create empioyer
awareness of the value of WorkKeys. They got $50,000 for promotion to the public.
$50,000 for promotion to employers and $25,00 for test administration. We allow for
students, corrections.... Itis to advise employers. It is not for profiling of employees.
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Govig: An information sheet on Workkeys was distributed. |t is for promotion to employers
and job seekers also.

Chairman Skarphol: What are the wishes of the committee?

Rep. Dosch: Move to remove $125,000

Rep. Monson: Second

Voice Vote: Motion carries

Rep. Dosch: How about # 6 on that same page, p. 1 on the green sheet?

Chairman Skarpholi: One time funding for the Indian business office.

Rep. Dosch: That is doubling ancther budget. | believe the Tribes have resources that
they can trap from like the casinos, the ones pumping the oil and get a few dollars from
chﬁTé to remove Iltem # 6.

Rep. Williams: Second

Voice Vote: Motion Carries

Chairman Skarphol: Is there anything left on this budget that we need to do.

Chamberlin: On the other proposed changes, items # 1 and 2. There was discussion of
reconsidering those or including the language within the bill.

Chairman Skarphol: That was the language in HB 1058 and HB 1059, earlier we were
going to move it in there with the idea that we were going take out Centers of Excellence.
Do you want to leave this in there because Rep. Hawken carried this on the floor with that
premise?

Rep. Hawken: That is the motion that this committee passed, if we are not doing that, it
is wrong for this committee to change that.

Chamberlin: Explains changes from: The Department shall and it was changed to The
Department may for both items.

Chairman Skarphol: We don’t need to take action on that at all. Currently we are at $8M
less in Centers of Excellence, net.

Chamberlin: Refers to handout# 1, p. 2.
Rep. Hawken: There should be some money in it. | don't know what that number is.

Rep. Williams: It is the discretionary fund; we don’t know what the number is.
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Chairman Skarphol: We are talking about a pool of money for them to invest in the
Centers of Excellence. According to this the $8.134M that we are down.

Rep. Martinson: We took out $13M (No recording).

Rep. Monson: Move to add $5M

Rep. Hawken: Second

Roll Call Vote: 3-3-0 Motion carries.

Rep. Dosch: What are the parameters for that? We are putting in money but ...

Chairman Skarphol: We would have to put in the parameters before we kick this bill out
of here.

Rep. Monson: Are we ready to do that? How much time do we have?
Chairman Skarphol: Let's do a Roll Call vote on $5M.

Rep. Williams: It is discretionary money. How do you set up a framework to use
discretionary money?

Chairman Skarphol: We would set some parameters that it must be invested in such as
technclogy ventures, with limitations.

Rep. Williams: What would happen if we didn’t put parameters on it?
Chairman Skarphol: We would hope it would be invested wisely, and grow.
Rep. Williams: They don’t grow.

Rep. Dosch: Without knowing the parameters, | could not support the motion.
Rep. Hawken: Motion

Rep. Monson: Second

Roll Call Vote: 5-1-0 Rep. Dosch Opposed, Motion Carries

Chairman Skarphol: What are the wishes of the committee? Send it out of here; hang on
to it until tomorrow?

Rep. Hawken: Do Pass as Amended.

Roli Call Vote: 5-1-0 Motion carries.
Meeting Adjourned
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Explanation or reason for mtroductlon of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the the
department of commerce; to create and enact a new chapter to title 17, a new chapter
to title 54, and two new sections to chapter 54-60 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to the biofuel blender pump incentive program, centers of research excellence
program, centers of entrepreneurship excellence grants, and the internship fund; to
amend and reenact sections 10-30.5-02, 15-69-01, 15-69-02, 15-69-03, 15-69-04,
15-69-05, 15-69-06, 54-44.5-09, 54-60-21, 54-60-22, and 54-60-23 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota development fund, incorporated,
centers of excellence program, the office of renewable energy and efficiency, and

. centers of workforce excellence grants; to provide a continuing appropriation; to
provide exemptions; to provide for transfers; to provide an effective date; to provide
an expiration date; and to declare an emergency

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Skarphol: The Committee was called to order to discuss HB 1018. We wiill
review decisions that we have made with regard to the close out or monitoring of the
existing Centers of Excellence.

Jennifer Clark, Legislative Council Legal Counsel: Indicates that her position is neutral
Referring to proposed Amendment # 1002, Section # 4. Amending Section 15-69-01,
which is the Centers of Excellence Chapter. Almost all of that, except for maybe the fund,
is scheduled to expire August 1, 2011. If you do nothing, it will all expire except for that
fund. There may be some problems with just letting it ail expire. | have gone through that
chapter to work out what | think is the necessary. | did not consult with Commerce in doing
this, and they may have some opinions. It is my understanding that you wanted to change
the current duties of the commission to move that over to the Department of Commerce so
that we could let that commission expire. It is drafted accordingly. Also added some
language at Sara Chamberlin's, (Legislative Council Representative) request to include the
agreed upon procedures language. That has to do with that change from annual audits for
post award monitoring to an audit at the midpoint and an audit at the end. On all other
years allow them to do an agreed upon procedure.

. Continuing with Section # 4, pages #1-2 of Proposed Amendments 1002 of HB 1018.
Discussing the definition are all used in the remaining language. | have repealed these,
this chapter is all going to expire on August 1, 2023. This should get you through all of your
post award monitoring for your most recent awards, then it can all go away.
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Going on with Section 5 of the bill, which amends Section 15-69-04. Gotten rid of most of
that language and clarified what the Department of Commerce’s duties are. That is, to
administer the Centers of Excellence program which still exists because they are still
handing out that money over the time lines that they have made the awards. They will
administer the program, determining how to distribute the funds.

Chairman Skarphol: Remaining funds.
Clark: Correct.

Chairman Skarphol: In my world “remaining” needs to be in there. | don't want them to
have any new.

Clark: | understand what you are saying and we have given away the award process.
From a legai standard, | don’t know that that is necessary because we've taken away the
granting and the awarding. All that is left is the distribution of already awarded funds.
Continuing with Section 5 and moving on to Section 6. They are distributing those funds
and they are monitoring those centers. That is why we have kept those magic numbers in
15-69-04. The rest is all overstruck. Your subsection # 5, referring to page 3 of the
amendment. It is important language about the post award monitoring. It is put in a new
section. Moving on to Section # 6 of the bill draft, pp. 3-4, there is a note there that on the
effective date of this act, July 1, 2011, the Department of Commerce is going to step into the
shoes of the commission. We have contracts out with all of our centers that say that Center
is going to comply with the requirement to provide information to the commission. We want
to recognize the contracts state “Give it to the Commission”. But Department of Commerce
is stepping into the Commissions shoes as it relates to post award monitoring.

Rep. Hawken: Your question, as far as did the commission do it or did commerce do it.
Commerce doesn’t report to the commission so it isn’t a change in function it is just wording.

Clark: Procedurally, the commission is delegating it to the department of commerce right
now. Substantively not much is going to change. The contracts say that they are working
with the commission. I've overstruck the language having to do with funding designations
and designations with centers because we are all done with that.

Continuing with p. 5, section # 8, here is where we move that post award monitoring
language because that is in existing law.

Subsection # 2, talking about the audit having to do with annual audits. And set the
minimums for those agreed upon procedures. Made a note that we will repeal this whole
chapter and that will take pltace on August 1, 2023. HB 1018 is a work in progress and
there are other amendments out there that you've approved. Need to bring to your attention
that other portions of this bill reference the commission. We need to either get rid of those
sections or change them because your commission will have expired. It will all have to be
melded together.

Chairman Skarphol: There is additional work to be done to get this to be complete.
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Clark: Sara told me that you had taken out some sections, 4, 5, 9, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 25,
27, and 30 in a previous amendment and those are the sections that refer to the
commission. If you do take them out we are OK in this bill.

Rep. Martinson: What you are saying that in this bill it is OK, but implying that in another
place it is not OK.

Clark: Yes, the interim Workforce Commiittee, a ot of the sections in this bill are also in
those interim committee bills which are in the Senate right now. We will have to work those
ail out.

Chairman Skarphol: You will have to notify us of what needs to happen in the second half
if they come across.

Clark: Yes.

Rep. Monson: What happens if the Senate reverses everything we have here but we get
their bills and we turn around and take all the stuff out in their bills to match this one. There
will be a Conference Committee on how many different bills, here?

Clark: Historically, a lot of these bills have been pulled into the appropriations.

Chairman Skarphol: Visitors from Selfridge were recognized. You pretty much did
whatever was in this list as on page 5, item 3. A B, C, D, E, F, G, H, |I. that is just the
proper form for what is suggested here. You looked through the whole document here?
Clark: |did not.

Chairman Skarphol: The last paragraph on this page, do you have this....?

Clark: | do not.

Chairman Skarphol: It is the one that Gordy Smith handed out. | made a note, and to
make you aware of it, in the last paragraph on the second page, in the second line, the word
*audits”. Gordy said it should not be “audits” but “agreed upon engagements”. He did not
think that “audits” is the proper term.

Clark: My understanding was that the funds could be used for the audits.

Chairman Skarphol: And agreed upon engagements.

Clark: It wasn’'t my understanding that it was agreed upon procedures. If that is what is
intended, that needs to be changed.

Chairman Skarphol: | think we should do that, if we are going to prepare an amendment.
Prepare for both rather than one or the other.
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Clark: It might have been the understanding that the Centers had budgeted for an agreed
upon procedure but they had budgeted for an audit.

Chairman Skarphol: If you are confident that an audit addresses the situation. ...

Clark: It does not cover those agreed upon procedures, so if it is to cover those agreed
upon procedures, ! don't think it does. But when | saw the language initially, it was my
understanding that the centers knew that there was post award monitoring. They didn't
budget that based upon a full blown audit. That full blown audit is more expensive to
conduct. That is why they allowed granting those funds for the audit.

Chairman Skarphol: The cost of the agreed upon procedures is substantially less,
probably less of an issue.

Clark: There are people who have stronger opinions about it than | do. It was my
understanding of why when this language went in.
We can prepare those amendments for you.

Meeting Closed.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the the
department of commerce; to create and enact a new chapter to title 17, a new chapter
to title 54, and two new sections to chapter 54-60 of the North Dakota Century Code,
relating to the biofuel blender pump incentive program, centers of research excellence
program, centers of entrepreneurship excellence grants, and the internship fund; to
amend and reenact sections 10-30.5-02, 15-69-01, 15-69-02, 15-69-03, 15-69-04,
15-69-05, 15-69-06, 54-44.5-09, 54-60-21, 54-60-22, and 54-60-23 of the North
Dakota Century Code, relating to the North Dakota development fund, incorporated,

. centers of excellence program, the office of renewable energy and efficiency, and
centers of workforce excellence grants; to provide a continuing appropriation; to
provide exemptions; to provide for transfers; to provide an effective date; to provide
an expiration date; and to declare an emergency.

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Skarphol: Some of the petroleum folks would like us to change what is eligible
on p. 12 of HB 1018. We have not taken action on that particular subject in this bill and
some would like us to incorporate the ability to use these dollars for new tanks and
plumbing because they are concerned about the underground tanks that they have in place
if they put this type of more corrosive product. Asking Mr. Rud to approach the podium.

Mike Rud, North Dakota Petroleum Marketers Office: What we are looking for is to take
the remaining state dollars, about $740,000 and use that for blender pumps but also for
marketers to use the available money for infrastructure should they choose to redo their
piping or their tanks to be sure they are compatible with the higher blends, to avoid any
disasters. The need for higher blends, to keep the public safe.

Rep. Martinson: Didn't we decide that if they had not applied by January 31 that money
would not be available?

Chairman Skarphol: | am looking for the document where we had committee action. The

. dollars do not reflect that we did anything.
Rep. Martinson: Since it ended on January 31, we would have to know how much it would
be.
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Rep. Williams: On p. 2 of the budget, line 24. 1t was not funded by the governor that is
why we did not touch in committee.

Chairman Skarphol: That is what was appropriated in '09, $1M. and there is some left
with uncertainty of how much.

Rep. Williams: We did not touch it in committee because we said it is not there.
Rep. Martinson: We said the program is over if they had not applied by January 31.

Rud: | understand that there is $740,000 of state and $255,000 of federal money left. |
think there is less, about $150,000 because there are people who are still in the process of
applying for these pumps. The date was extended by the government from stimulus. [t
may be May of this year that they are not allowed to access it anymore.

Chairman Skarphol: Addressing Sara Chamberlin, Legislative Council Representative,
Was there any action on the blender pump issue?

Chamberlin: No

Chairman Skarphol: There was some discussion, however, on that handout dated
February 7 but there was never a motion made. Did Mr. Rud provide you with a proposed
amendment?

Chamberlin: | have a sketched amendment.

Rep. Hawken: Because of that discussion, | included that in transferring money for child
care. We did not.

Chairman Skarphol: The $740,000 still remains in this budget without being addressed.
Rep. Hawken: Mine went up to $1.6M so | still would like that money.

Chamberlin: The changes will be on p. 12 of the hill, line # 8. Cost share grants of up to
$5,000 is suggested to change to $25,000. Per pump is suggested to change to per_retail
location. Moving on to additional changes as follows: On line 9 before biofuel is suggested
to change to for the installation of tanks, piping and biofuel blender pumps. On line 13 it
would read the verification of costs for tanks piping, biofuel blender pumps.

Chairman Skarphol: Those are the recommendations that we have.

Rep. Monson: $740,000 in state money from previous appropriation, plus $250,00 federal
dollars. i

Chairman Skarphol: That is not germane in this discussion because it is there regardless
of what we do.
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Rud: The federal dollars would become much harder for us to access. We would have to
go through some envircnmental assessments if we were to include all of the infrastructure.
We might have to forgo the federal dollars unless we can set them aside specifically for for
blender pumps. Use the $740,000 for tanking and piping and other equipment.

Rep. Monson: How many more facilities are planning to put in blender pumps?

Rud: About 15, and more if their tanks and pipes were compatible to higher blends.

Rep. Monson: [f we were to adopt this amendment, on line 8 where we went from $8,000
to $25,000 | would be upset if | got $5,000 because | was on the ball and did it right away.

Rud: There is more and more concern about the compatibility issues. Some did sign up
and had pumps in place and were not adequate earlier and as we go to higher blends......

Rep. Monson: Could these people go back and reapply? Could they access that $5,0007?
Rud: By all means, they could go back and repair their pipes.

Chairman Skarphol: we've used $260,000 out of $1M, is that what we have used?

Rud: itwas $1M in state and $1M in stimuius.

Chairman Skarphol: Our funds were available at $5,000 [per pump. And how many
pumps got put in? Apparently 50 some at $5,000 a throw can burn up $250,000..

Dolan: The estimated carry over in this line is $740,000.

Chairman Skarphol: $260,000 would buy you 52 pumps. Can they buy more than one
pump per location?

Rud: Yes, 2% of that $2M total that was available, they could put at least four per site.
Chairman Skarphol: What is the average number of pumps you've got installed?

Rud: Three pumps per site.

Chairman Skarphol: That wouid be 14 locations at $25,000 a throw, would be $300,000.
Rep. Martinson: Is one pump one unit even if it has two or three nozzles on it?

Rud: That is one dispenser.

Chairman Skarphol: We are going to spend half of the money upgrading the ones we
already did it. Do you have enough people interested to use rest of it?

Rud: If you put this in place where they can access this money for infrastructure because
the people who signed off for the certification with the health department also signed off
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that if their sites are not compatible and they have a release then they can’t access their
tank for cleanup. They have a concern about the cleanup because it is $.5M to $1M for
cleanup.

Rep. Monson: I've seen pumps that have E 85 and E 30 they are not really a blender
pump. In my mind you can pick a blender pump and say | want E 75, punch it in. Or are
you talking about a dispenser that says E 85 or E 30. Asks for clarification on what a
blender pump is.

Rud: You could probably have an E 10 £ 30 and E 85. That is what we consider a blender
pump. You can't dial up your own level.

Rep. Hawken: To get the price down, from the manufacturer, where is that?

Rud: A few installers set some money aside and brought the price of the blender pump
down to encourage folks to put the blender pumps in along with this program. There was
some movement in the Valley to get that done. Manufacturers may not be giving a break.

Rep. Monson: Did they think ahead and put in different tanks and pumps or did they take
the money, put in their own blender pumps and use their old tanks?

Rud: No one will take responsibility to install these blender pumps and certify these sites
and keep an eye on them to be sure they are up to speed. Some had bad information
because they wanted to sell a dispenser.

Rep. Monson: Iif we make the amendment to give out this $25,000, that we help these
guys get their pipes and their tanks before we go down the road with any new blender
pumps. This seems like disaster waiting to happen.

Rep. Martinson: Rep. Hawken could give us information on the child care portion.

Rep. Hawken: The recruitment and retention of child care workers as was piloted last
year and the total to do haif of it is $5M. Where that money would come from currently is
$150,000 from the development loan fund, $400,000 for grants for early childhood facilities,
$150,000 from Child Development, $619,000 from the Division of Energy and $2M from the
Centers of Excellence imminent research and what was left over in the Great Plains Energy
bill which was $65,000. Without using any of the blender pump money. | visited with the
leadership and it is my feeling that at least $1M should be taken out of Human Services
because they take credit for all of this that is being done by Child Resource and Referral
who would be running this program. Currently there would be $1,615,759 that would be an
additional appropriation. The other two sources that | had were the blender pump fueling of
$750,000 and the $300,000 carry over in Agriculture Products and Utilization Commission
(APUC). The total will be $5M.

Chairman Skarphol: To reach the $5M some would have to come from Human Services.

Rep. Hawken: Eventually, we don't have that bill to get it now.
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Chairman Skarphol: Excluding the blender pumps, what is the amount?
Chamberlin: Exciuding the blender pumps would be $1,615,000. $3,384,241.

Rep. Monson: All the things that you added together, taking from what we had cut out,
this budget would increase by $615,000 and does not include the blender pump or the
APUC money.

Rep. Hawken: The budget would increase by $1.6M if we added those other two items. |
did talk to Rep. Carlson about this, moving forward. We talk about assisting petroleum
dealers; this is a desperate need for workforce. We just added $4M to the IT budget. This
is valuable and it should be continued for one year.

Sara Chamberlin: Because of the removal of $13M for Centers of Excellence, $2M of that
would need to come back in that was originally in the Centers of Excellence recruitment
grants. The next piece that would have to come back in is the remaining general fund
appropriation. Without the blender pumps funding that would be the $1.6M This would
general funds of the $2M and the $1.6M. Offers to print out the summary sheet.

Rep. Dosch: What did we fund them last time?

Rep. Hawken: We used stimulus money last time for the pilot.  Just shy of $4M.
Distributing handout # 3.

Chairman Skarphol: If we do this, what can we do with the $830,000 that is in the
extension budget for kindergarten.

Rep. Hawken: They are totally different programs. Explains the need for the funding.
Research shows that there is a payback.

Chairman Skarphol: What can we do with the $1M that is in the education bill that we will
have to fund Head Start? Would this address the same issue as Head Start?

.Rep. Hawken: Yes, it addresses the same issue but for a different population at a
different time in their lives. | have a chart that shows all of the different agencies involved
and how it ties together. This group is currently working so that we don't do duplication but
a seamless piece. All will be working together, so that we will not be duplicating.

A place to provide quality child care is needed if workers are going to come to the area.
This helps our state grow. This is a workforce program.

Chairman Skarphol: The frustration is that if we could get them all in the same room at the
same time, we could save some money.

Rep. Hawken: That is exactly what we are doing but we are doing it without legislation.
in the next couple of weeks there will be an outline where we have cut from one board to
three, the Department of Human Services, DPIl, the Health Department, Extension,
Commerce and the governor's office all working together on these early childhood issues
so we are not duplicating. We have areas that are rural, a bigger poverty area. The
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workforce area is what this wouid address and why it is in Commerce. You're training
childcare centers and in the home. They pay taxes, at one time they were the sixth largest
industry as far as paying taxes in the state. The people who are the worker bees need a
place that they feel comfortable with for their children. Quality childcare for the workers
makes a difference in how you can attract a workforce. The first focus at the time of
pregnancy is what kind of child care is available. People don’t come here if they can not be
certain of quality child care. It is a piece that makes our state grow. It is considered as a
social program but it is a workforce program.

Rep. Martinson: Move $1,615,759 general fund appropriation.

Rep.Hawken: Second

Rep. Dosch: | will vote against this motion. | would have no problem doing everything but
the $1.6M . We are increasing spending over and above the Governor and if Rep. Hawken
can get that out of Human Services, great. Right now simply adding additional, if we can't
find the money, | can’'t support it for $5M.

If we can take out the $1.6M

Rep. Monson: Will support this with the hope that $1.6M will be found in Human Services.
Motion Carried: 5-1-0, Opposed by Rep. Dosch.

Chairman Skarphol: We are down to $8M that we have removed here.

Rep. Monson: Move to make changes to blender pump, that allow the pipes and the
tanks and somewhere in legislative intent that we put in a bunch more blender pumps they

go back and address issues that are going wrong with what might be done.

Rep. Martinson: | hope that in five to ten years when the subsidies are gone and ask for
money to remove them all.

Rep. Dosch: Second

Voice Vote, motion carries.

Chairman Skarphol: We did have a motion with regard to the Nekoma project, the Great
Plains Applied Energy Research Center. We have since taken that money for the Bismarck
State work and moved it into the higher ed budget. | assume the $600,000 is still
appropriated, based on our motions.

Chamberlin: Affirms.

Chairman Skarphol: The motion that you reference on # 3 of this handout takes a care of
all of the issues in #s one and two, correct?

Chamberlin: The committee would need to decide what to do on One and Two because
there was a motion to include the language in HB 1058 and HB 1059 in HB 1018 for
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Commerce. What needs to be decided is, the funding that was provided for Centers of
Excellence of $13M has now been reduced to the $11M remaining. The committee has not
acted on removing funding from the bill or changing. There has been a motion to remove
the sections related to the Centers of Excellence but the a[appropriation in Section still
remains. It has been reduced now to $11M. $2M of that is for the Child Care.

Chairman Skarphol: We appropriated general funds so the actual amount remaining, if
you were to deduct the $1,615,790 would be less.

Chamberlin: Correct, that full piece was to come from what was appropriated for Centers
of Excellence. Doing the calculation :

Chairman Skarphol: Have we made the motion to put the new language from the auditor's
office in here?

Chamberlin: No, suggested by legal staff, Jen Clark as well as ...,

Chairman Skarpho!l: There was an amendment that was presented? It is 1002 (See
attached amendment). This would accomplish everything on this sheet that hasn’t been?

Chamberlin: This amendment only relates to Centers of Excellence. It also incorporates
what the auditors office recommended.

Rep. Martinson: Addressing Chamberlin, Where is the $600,000 for Nekoma?
Chamberlin: There hasn't been an amendment prepared for that yet, but it is included.

Chairman Skarphol: Amendment 1002 would include the language that is required in HB
1060and what else?

Chamberlin: This amendment is what legal staff is recommending replacing what has
been removed for Centers of Excellence. It allows the Department of Commerce to
continue monitoring and disperse of any amounts that have not been awarded.

Chairman Skarphol: With regard to amendment 1002, what are your wishes?

Rep. Dosch: Move to accept the adoption of the Amendment 01002.

Rep. Martinson: Second

Roll Call Vote: Motion carried: 6-0-0.

Chairman Skarphol: Now we ha\}e the issue of what kind of dollars to leave in the
Department of Commerce for investment. We are down to under $8M in reductions.

Rep. Monson: This would be the substitute pool of money so that they could continue new
Centers of Excellence but under new and tighter guidelines administered through the
Department of Commerce.
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Chairman Skarphol: We were going to give them a pool of money to have available to
invest. If they are unsuccessful in gaining a profit, it would go away. Our commitment to
the Centers of Excelience has been met.

Rep. Dosch: We have no guidelines; do we pass it out of here with no money and
establish parameters in full committee?

Rep. Williams: What denomination are we talking about?

Chairman Skarphol: We have never discussed a number. They are in shock. We can
wait for the other side of the body to see what they can do with it.

Rep. Hawken: it would be nice if we put some money in.

Rep. Monson: |t is the Senate’s turn. Commerce knows what our discussions have been
and can present it to the Senate. | am comfortable sending it out the way it is.

Chairman Skarphol: We are not ready to take action. Any other potential changes?

Break for the day.



sy
2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

House Appropriations Committee
Roughrider Room, State Capitol

HB 1018
2/18/11
14757

[ ] Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signat M /ﬁ '
ommitiee Clerk signature - / Wﬂ}

/

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the the
department of commerce; to create and enact a new chapter to title 17, a new chapter to
titie 54, and two new sections to chapter 54-60 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to the biofuel blender pump incentive program, centers of research excellence program,
centers of entrepreneurship excellence grants, and the internship fund; to amend and
reenact sections 10-30.5-02,15-69-01, 15-69-02, 15-69-03, 15-69-04, 15-69-05, 15-69-06,
54-44.5-09, 54-60-21, 54-60-22, and 54-60-23 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to the North Dakota development fund, incorporated, centers of excellence program, the
office of renewable energy and efficiency, and centers of workforce excellence grants; to
provide a continuing appropriation; to provide exemptions; to provide for transfers; to
provide an effective date; to provide an expiration date; and to declare an emergency.

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Delzer: Calling the Committee to order to discuss HB 1018, the Department of
Commerce budget.

Representative Skarphol: | move we adopt amend .01001.
Representative Monson: Second.

Representative Skarphol: Discussion of the amendment beginning on pg. 8 to talk about
the money first. There was $2M in infrastructure grants in the last biennium, $1.5M fro
Lewis and Clark Foundation Grants, $500,000 for the Theodore Roosevelt Foundation
Grant. The committee approved $1M be left in the budget for that purpose. The Minot Air
Force Base realignment grant, #3 is to remove centers of excellence removing $13M. That
will take about 13 pages out of the bill. Name change pg. 8 will remain the Workforce
enhancement funding mechanism Federally funded is the jobs for America’'s graduate
program, discontinued. WorkKeys program for $125,000 is removed, $100,000 for the
Indian Business office. All of that added together resulted in an $8,459,691 general fund
reduction in this budget. We did remove the division of energy, centers of excellence.
Page 4 of the bill has some language changes and the process of auditing to the Agreed
Upon Procedures. The agreed upon procedures are delineated in pp. 4-5. A change in the
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blender pump item includes infrastructure upgrades, reading from pg. 12 of the
amendment.

Chairman Delzer: Does this mean the same ones that have done the pumps will get
another grant to do their piping?

Representative Skarphol: We hope there is some monitoring of the appropriateness of
that, we did not increase or appropriate new money. We allowed to carry forward money
that was left from the program, $740,000.

Chairman Delzer: Was the federal money used first?

Representafive Skarphol: Most federal and general fund money available, most of the
federal money is going to be used up and this is what will be left of that. At $14,000 a piece
to be divided into $740,000 it is comes out at 52 which is in the area of the number of
retailers who may have an interest in doing this.

Chairman Delzer: You're leaving it up to the commerce department to determine who
receives grants. ‘

Representative Skarphol; We didn't tighten up any language there.

Chairman Delzer: It seems the old language had a maximum per location of $40,000.
Representative Skarphol: The old language was they could have $5000.

Chairman Delzer: Is that language in here?

Representative Skarphol; It's not in here now. There was discussion on ag product
utilization. There is a $203,000 general fund increase to ag products in the last biennia
there was a change to fund ag products on a 5% of the profits of the State Mill at $600,000.
There was the availability for $738,000 of Ethanol motor vehicle fuel tax, ending in about
$110,000 after all distributions. The energy office is gone. We continued the internship
program.

Chairman Delzer: Did you make any increase in the Trade Office?

Representative Skarphol: $489,000 for the Trade Office, it was not changed.

Chairman Delzer: Did you change anything in the amount that they have to use that?
Where is that at?

Representative Skarphol: The same language that was in last time is in this time. Page
21 of existing bill, section 9 we removed the following sections with our amendment: 4, 5,
9, 11, 14, 15,16, 17, 25, 27, and 30.

Chairman Delzer: In the sections you added, they relate to the monitoring of the grants.
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Representative Skarphol: We did add in the language that we said on the floor, it was
1058,1059 that are reflected in the amendment on p. 5-6. We did authorize the $600,000
for the Anti Ballistic Missile Site at Nekoma. Calling on Rep. Monson to speak to that.

Representative Hawken: Early Childhood see attachment #1. This program was in place
last session for workforce development and we are training the childcare workers so that
we can retain them and those businesses pay taxes into our general fund. The second
piece is the workers who need childcare have a quality place for their children. The
program in the last biennium was extremely successful. The training program is what is
being created, provided on line and get a certificate. Money was moved around within the
Commerce Budget as to Childcare grants and loans. From last session there was
$450,000 for child development credentials that would come out of the money now. The
eminent researcher grant was another source of funding. The remaining funding should be
paid for by Human Services for the mandate by law. This is not the same as the Extension
Bill, it is a place for workers and their children.

Chairman Delzer: Changing the ianguage at all from HB 1418. Are you changing the
program or expanding? Is there a requirement for matching funds?

Representative Hawken: There are requirements for matching funds in some instances,
not all. Moving forward it should not need the funding it needs right now.

Chairman Delzer: What kind of limits are there on grant amounts per each?

Representative Hawken: The grant amount piece is pretty much gone....childcare isn't
like building houses or running a farm, there is a business component, there is a training,
retention, recruitment component to increase the number of day care providers in the state.

Chairman Delzer: Could you put together a one page sheet that shows the funding and
where it goes.

Representative Hawken: Yes | can

Representative Monson: AMB missile site or SRMSC see attachment 2 and 3. Min 1900
The local community has kicked in a lot of money to date, as a match. Min 2300. It was
intended to be a part of the Centers of Excellence.

Chairman Delzer: | thought they were going to do an Unmaned Vehicle Site out of Grand
Forks.

Representative Monson: They are...part of the reason for this is there is cleared air
because it was an air base and a missile site. It was sited to keep that space very clear.
Not that much cost. There would be a museum piece and much as with the Offensive
Missile Site we have now.

Chairman Delzer: What if the pufchase price cannot be attained, does it return to the
general fund?
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Representative Monson: Yes, since it is through commerce

Chairman Delzer: About half way through attachment 2 you've got $3-$5M needed to
clean up heavy metal pollution.

Representative Monson: That has to be done before they can sell it. Not many people
are interested in something like this so it pretty much has to be a government entity. No
other branch of the military needs it, so the next people that can buy it would be a
government entity.

Chairman Delzer: Who would the owner be?

Representative Monson: It would be up to commerce to decide how they want to do that.

Chairman Delzer: questions by the committee

Representative Skarphol: Going back to eariy childhood grant information on pg. 10 of
that amendment. Reading item # 10. There are some loans still available as dileneated on
pg. 9 of amendment #1001 to bring the total to $5M.

Chairman Delzer: Further questions

Amend adopted by voice vote

Chairman Skarphol: Move Do Pass as Amended

Rep. Monson: Second

Representative Nelson: When the Governor talked about the Energy Office, weren't they
combining renewable energy office? Are they still in exiastance?

Representative Skarphol: This was a new entity.

Chairman Delzer: It was all for new FTE for a new office and no new movement within
Commerce.

Representative Nelson: Maybe that was in his description, but | wanted to be clear
Chairman Delzer: | don't believe there’s any reduction

Vice Chairman Kempenich: The renewable is just an advisory board

Representative Nelson: And they're still in existence, they weren't taken out?
Representative Skarphol: There is still an office of renewable energy within the
Commerce Division of Community Services. As a committee we felt we met our

commitment to the Centers of Excellence program. We had committed to $50 million and
we are at $60M plus today. It is expected to build on its own.



- House Appropriations Committee N
HB 1018

2/18/11

Page 5

Chairman Delzer: There are parts | agree with, and parts | do not agree with. There are
some pretty creative things going on here, which we’ve done in a number of budgets.

Representative Skarphol: We tried to be as étraightforward as we could with this.
We feel we put this in the place it should be.

Roll Call Vote: 18-1-2. Opposed by Chairman Delzer.
Carrier: Rep. Skarphol

Meeting adjourned.
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0 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council
04/08/2011

Amendment to: Engrossed
HB 1018

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to

funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current faw.
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium

General Fund| Other Funds [Genera! Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds

Revenues
Expenditures
Appropriations

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium

School School School

Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

In addition to the appropriations contained in HB 1018, this amendment creates a new income tax credit for purchases
w of machinery and equipment used to automate the manufacturing process.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have
fiscal impact. Include any assumplions and comments refevant (o the analysis.

Section 15 of HB 1018 creates a corporation and individual income tax credit for certified primary sector businesses
equal to 20% of the cost of purchasing equipment for automating the manufacturing processes. The total amount of
tax credits for automation is limited to $2 million per tax year. The effective date and expiration date in section 40 of
the bill would have this tax credit effective for the 2012, 2013, and 2014 taxable years. This could result in a reduction
in state general fund revenues of up to $2 million for the 2011-13 biennium, and up to $4 million for the 2013-15
biennium. The actual amount of automation expenses that will qualify for the credit cannot be determined.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues. Explain the revenue amounts. Provide delail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounis included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a

. continuing appropriation.
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Roll Cali Vote #: |

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES

House

BILL/IRESOLUTION NO.

N2 j01S

Appropriations — Education and Environment

Committee

] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken:

~

[ ] Rerefer to Appropriations

Xl Do Pass [] Do NotPass [ ] Amended

[] Reconsider

[ 1 Adopt Amendment

Motion Made By 8/;' Wmﬁ Py o Seconded By | ,6,0 )L/g,éfw/rw
T

Representatives

"
7]

No

Representatives

Yes | No

Bob Skarphol

Clark Williams

X

Kathy Hawken

Fd

Mark Dosch

Rep. Martinson;

David Monson

- PSPA<PLp<

~

Total

(Yes) 6

No

Absent D

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



Date: 2/15/11
Roll Call Vote #: 1

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1018

House Appropriations — Education and Environment Committee
[L] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken: [ Do Pass [ ] Do Not Pass [] Amended [ Adopt Amendment

[ 1 Rerefer to Appropriations [ ] Reconsider

Motion Made By Rep. Monson Seconded By Rep. Hawken
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No

Chairman Bob Skarphol X Clark Williams X
Vice Chair Hawken X
Mark Dosch X
Rep. Martinson: X
David Monson X

Total (Yes) 3 No 3

Absent O

Floor Assignment
Chairman Skarphol

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
To add $5M
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Roll Call Vote #.2.

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALIL. VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1018

House Appropriations - Education and Environment Committee

(] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken: Do Pass [ | Do NotPass [ ] Amended [] Adopt Amendment

[ ] Rerefer to Appropriations [ | Reconsider

Motion Made By Rep. Hawken Seconded By Rep. Monson

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Bob Skarphol X Clark Williams X
X

X

X

Vice Chair Hawken
Mark Dosch

Rep. Martinson;
David Monson

Total (Yes) 5 No 1

Absent 0

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
To Add $5M
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Fiscal No.1 Environment

February 16, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1018
Page 1, line 1, remove the second "the"
Page 1, line 2, after "enact" insert "section 15-69-07."
Page 1, line 2, after the first comma insert "and"
Page 1, line 2, remove "chapter to title 54, and two"
Page 1, line 3, replace "new sections to chapter 54-60" with "section to chapter 54-60"
Page 1, line 3, after the second "the" insert "centers of excellence program,”
Page 1, line 4, remove "centers of research excellence program, centers of entrepreneurship”
Page 1, line 5, remove "excellence grants,”
-Page 1, line 8, remove "15-69-02, 15-69:03"
Page 1, line 6, after the fourth comma insert "and”
Page 1, line 6, remove ", 15-69-06, 54-44.5-09, 54-60-21, 54-60-22,"
Page 1, line 7, remove "and 54-60-23"
Page 1, line 8, after the second comma insert "and"
Page 1, line 8, remove ", the office of renewable energy and"
Page 1, line 9, remove "efficiency, and centers of workforce excellence grants”

Page 1, line 9, after the first semicolon insert "to repeal chapter 15-69 of the North Dakota
Century Code, relating to the centers of excellence program;”

Page 1, replace line 22 with:

"Operating expenses 14,478,272 (595,012) 13,883,260"
Page 1, replace line 24 with:

"Grants 65,411,058 851,936 66,262,994"
Page 2, replace line 1 with:

“North Dakota development fund 0 250,000 250,000"
Page 2, replace line 3 with: ‘

“Workforce enhancement ' 0 2,000,000 2,000,000"
Page 2, remove line 6 )j

Page 2, replace line 8 with: .

"Partner programs 2,022,044 0 2,022 044"

Page No. 1 11.8160.01001
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Page 2, remove line 9

Page 2, replace line 11 with:

"Total ali funds $97,672,773
Page 2, replace line 13 with:

"Total general fund $28,006,303
Page 2, replace line 14 with:

"Full-time equivalent positions 68.00
Page 2, replace line 20 with:

"Workforce enhancement fund

Page 2, remove lines 21 through 23

Page 2, after line 27, insert:

"Tourism infrastructure grant

Page 2, replace line 28 with:

Child care grants and loans

Child care service providers
recruitment, training, and retention grants”

Page 2, repilace line 29 with:

"Centers of excellence

Page 2, after line 30, insert:

"Minot air force base realignment grant

Page 3, replace line 2 with:

“Total all funds

Page 3, replace line 4 with:

"Total general fund

$28,591,967

$9,623,500

$1,000,000

1,820,000

0

19,500,000

$99,064,635

$30,470,000

Page 5, line 10, overstrike "(Effective through July 31,"

Page 5, line 10, remove "2021"

Page 5, line 10, overstrike the boldfaced closing parenthesis

25

>

$126,264,740"
$37.629,803"
68.25"

$2,000,000"

1,000,000"

370,338
4,935,000

O"
250,000"

$33,0562,088"

$8,555,338"

Page 5, line 16, after "4." insert ""Department” means the degariment of commerce.

5.”

Page 5, overstrike lines 17 through 25

Page No. 2
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Page 5, remove lines 28 and 29
Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 8, remove lines 1 through 5
Page 8, line 8, overstrike "(Effective through July 31,"
Page 8, line 8, remove "2021"

Page 8, line 8, overstrike "} Application - Eligibility requirements” and insert immediately
thereafter "Centers of excellence program”

Page 8, line 9, overstrike "1."
Page 8, line 9, overstrike "provide center application forms, accept”

Page 8, overstrike lines 10 through 20 and insert inmediately thereafter "administer the centers
of excellence program;”

Page 8, overstrike lines 24 through 30

Page 9, overstrike lines 1 through 23

Page 9, line 28, overstrike "(Effective through July 31,"

Page 9, line 26, remove "2021"

Page 9, iine 26, overstrike the boldfaced closing parenthesis

Page 10, line 2, overstrike "board" and insert immediately thereafter "department”

Page 10, line 4, overstrike "commission's” and insert immediately thereafter "department's”
Page 10, line 6, overstrike "commission” and insert immediately thereafter "department"
Page 10, line 7, remove "Instead of reguiring annual audits under this subsection', the"

Page 10, replace lines 8 through 13 with "Effective on the effective date of this Act, the
department shall assume the postaward monitoring duties previously fulfilled by the
commission and the center shall provide the department, rather than the commission,
with_the information necessary to monitor the postaward activities of the center."

Page 10, line 14, overstrike "commission directs the"

Page 10, line 14, overstrike "to distribute" and insert immediately thereafter "distributes”
Page 10, line 15, overstrike "commission” and insert immediately thereafter "department”
Page 10, iine 23, overstrike "In making funding recommendations”

Page 10, overstrike lines 24 through 26

Page 10, line 27, overstrike "commission shall direct the"

Page 10, line 27, overstrike "to" and insert immediately thereafter "shall”

Page 10, line 29, overstrike "commission” and insert immediately thereafter "department”

i

Page 11, line 2, overstrike "commission may"

Page No. 3 11.8160.01001



Page 11, line 3, overstrike "direct that the"

Page 11, line 3, after "commerce” insert "may"”

Page 11, line 4, overstrike "commission” and insert immediately thereafter "department”

Page 11, line 5, overstrike "commission" and insert immediately thereafter "department"

Page 11, line 6, overstrike "commission's" and insert immediately thereafter "department's"

Page 11, line 8, overstrike ", which"

Page 11, overstrike line 7

Page 11, line 8, overstrike "centers of excellence forums" and insert immediately thereafter
"related to this program"

Page 11, remove lines 11 through 18

Page 11, after line 18, insert:

"SECTION 7. Section 15-69-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is created
and enacted as follows:

15-69-07. Centers of excellence postaward monitoring.

1.

For no fewer than six years and no more than ten years following center

designation, the department shall monitor a center's activities in order to
determine whether the center is having the desired economic impact.

Instead of requiring annual audits under subsection 2 of section 15-69-05,

the department may require that the center be audited on all funds
distributed to the center under this chapter at the halfway point of the
postaward monitoring and at the end of the postaward monitoring and that
for all other years during the postaward monitoring the center contract with
an independent accountant for an agreed-upon procedures engagement. A
center may use funds distributed to the center under this chapter to pay for
audits required under subsection 2 of section 15-69-05 or for an
agreed-upon procedures engagement.

At a minimum, an agreed-upon procedures engagement under subsection

2 must include:

a.  Verification of the accuracy of jobs data regarding jobs claimed related
by the center, distinguishing between the creation of private sector
jobs and jobs within the institution of higher education;

b.  Verification of compliance with the centers of excellence program
matching fund requirements:

c. Verification awarded center funds were used for authorized uses:

d.  Verification the center complied with the center's application timeline
and any authorized revisions:

e.  Verification the center complied with the center's scope of activities as
provided under the center's application and any authorized revisions;

Page No. 4 11.8160.01001
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f.  Review of a sample of center expenditures to verify the expenses
were approved, supported with documentation. and made in
accordance with the scope identified in the center's application:

a. Verification of a sample of labor charged 10 the center;

h. Verification business incentive agreements comply with chapter
54-60.1; and

i. Comparison of the center's application budget to the center's actual

expenditures, including documentation explaining any material
difierences.”

Page 12, line 8, replace "five" with "fourteen"

Page 12, line 8, replace "pump" with "retail location"

Page 12, line 10, after "locations” insert *_including the piping system and storage
components”

Page 12, line 13, after "equipment” insert ",_including the piping system and storage
components”

Page 13, remove lines 15 through 30
Page 14, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 15, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 16, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 17, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 18, remove lines 1 through 6
Page 18, after line 13, insert:

"SECTION 10. GRANT - DIVISION OF TOURISM - TOURISM
INFRASTRUCTURE GRANTS. The grants line item in section 1 of this Act includes the
sum of $1,000,000 from the general fund for providing a tourism infrastructure grant.

SECTION 11. GRANT - MINOT AIR FORCE BASE REALIGNMENT GRANT.
The grants line item in section'1 of this Act includes the sum of $250,000 from the
general fund for providing a base realignment grant to enhance economic development
and employment opportunities associated with the Minot air force base resulting from
action by the federal defense base ciosure and realignment commission.

SECTION 12. CHILD CARE GRANTS - WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT -
QUALITY IMPROVEMENT - TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE - CAPACITY BUILDING.
The grants line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of $4,835,000 from the
general fund for providing grants to child care service providers for workforce
development, quality improvement, technical assistance, and capacity building in
collaboration with the department of human services under section 50-11.1-14.1.

SECTION 13. INNOVATION 2020 AWARD. The department may administer an
innovation 2020 award program to provide proof-of-concept funding to a qualified
entrepreneur to assist in moving a new technology from academia into the
commercialization cycle, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30,
2013. The following provisions apply to an award under this section:

Page No. 5 11.8160.01001



An applicant must be an individual who is associated with a North Dakota
institution of higher education as a student, an employee, or other
relationship the department may authorize.

The applicant must have an early-stage technology with high commercial
potential.

The department shall establish the qualified uses of funds received under
this section.”

As a term for receipt of funds under this section, the recipient shall agree

to the department's repayment terms equal to two times the amount of the
award.

The department's repayment terms may include the department taking an
equity position in, providing a loan to, or using any other innovative
financing mechanism to provide the funds to the recipient. The terms of

repayment may be conditioned on the new technology becoming income
generating.

An award under this section may not exceed fifty thousand dollars. A
recipient may not receive more than one award under this section.

An award under this section is not a business incentive under chapter
54-60.1.

SECTION 14. TECHNOLOGY AWARD EQUITY INVESTMENT PROGRAM.
The department may administer a technology award equity investment program that
provides matching equity investments to technology-based businesses, for the
biennium beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2013. The following provisions
apply to technology award equity investments:

1.

An applicant must;

a. Be a North Dakota business that is at the startup stage;
b. Be a primary éector business in the technology fieid; and

¢. Have a legal structure that was estabiished following comprehensive

vetting, development of proof of concept, and a completed business
plan.

Before funds are distributed under this section, the recipient shall provide
the department with detailed documentation of the availability of two
dollars of angel fund investment matching funds for each dollar of state
funds distributed under this section. Matching funds must come from a
North Dakota angel fund certified under section 57-38-01.26 and be in
cash. Matching funds may not be in-kind assets.

An equity investment under this section may not exceed fifty thousand

dollars. A recipient may not receive more than one award under this
section.

An award equity investment under this section is not a business incentive
under chapter 54:60.1."
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Page 18, remove lines 14 through 31

Page 19, remove lines 1 through 26

Page 20, line 10, replace "The" with "Up to $665,000 of the"

Page 20, line 11, replace "46" with "26" '

Page 20, line 12, remove "On June 30, 2011, the office of management and budget shall

Page 20, remove lines 13 and 14

Page 20, line 15, replace "entrepreneurship excellence-awarded projects,” with "The

department of commerce may spend these funds for the purposes provided for in this
section,"

Page 20, line 16, remove "The department of commerce may use up to $5,000,000 of the
funds"

Page 20, replace line 17 with "The department of commerce may use up to $600,000 of these
funds for a grant to assist in the acquisition of the antiballistic missile site at the
Stanley R. Mickelson safeguard complex in Nekoma. The department of commerce
may use up to $65,000 of these funds for grants to child care service providers for
workforce development, guality improvement, technical assistance, and capacity

building in collaboration with the department of human services under section
50-11.1-14.1."

Page 21, line 1, remove "CENTERS OF"

Page 21, line 1, replace "EXCELLENCE" with "ENHANCEMENT"
Page 21, line 2, remove "centers of"

Page 21, line 3, replace the first "excellence” with "enhancement”
Page 21, line 3, remove "centers of"

Page 21, line 3, replace the second "excellence" with "enhancement”
Page 21, remove lines 6 through 15

Page 21, line 17, replace "$400,000" with "$250,000"

Page 22, remove lines 1 through 21

Page 23, after line 7, insert:

"SECTION 